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1. Name

[_&ﬁc‘a&w oA

historic  3ondsimin- B. Leas House-Fort Shiriey Site

Jan g

M HESY

andior common  Rockview (The Rock)

fhad

ISTORIR BISERIANO

2. Location

street & number U, &, Route 522 north

_N{ﬁ‘ot' for publication

N/&A :

city, town Shirlevshurs /_ vicinity of congressional district 9th
state Pennsylvania code county  Huntingdon code 061
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
___ district —— public 3 occupied —__ agriculture —_ museum
_X_ building(s) - private e UNnoccupied ~Xx _commercial ___ park
— . structure ____both ____work in progress —— educational — private residence

X __ site Public Acquisition Accessible . entertainment —religious
__— object N_/_A in process _X _yes: restricted ____ government . ___ scientitic

/A being considered — yes: unrestricted — industrial — transportation
—nn — military ... other:

r o . - . S A

=, WWTNlEr Wi rowuerayy

name ¢, R, %W. Land Co,, Inc.

street & number - Pdo.; Box 67, Route 522

city, town shirlersourg NLAA- vicinity of

state  Pennsylvania

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Register/Recorders Cffice, Huntingdon County Courthouse

street & number Péﬁ'ﬁ_s;oreet

city, town Huntinzdon

state  Pennsyivania

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title ==, +4ined0n County Historic Site has this property been determined elegible? ___yes ___no
Survey
date 1¢77-1¢78 —federal _x_state _x__ county ___local

depository for survey records Euntingdon Countv Fistoriecsl Societys

city town fourth Street, Huntingdon

state Pennsylvania



' #7. Description

Condition Check one Check one

— excellent - deteriorated _;; _ unaltered X original site

—x_ good ___ ruins £ altered __ _moved date N/A _
o fair — unexposed .

Describe the present and original {if known) physical appearance

Situtated in the municipality of Shirleysburg, theBanjamin 3. Leas-Fouse-Tort Shirley,
locally known as "The Rock," wis built on a small rice above Fort Run. The house is

a two and a half story rectangylar building constructed of locally fired soft red
brick. The house measures U1 feet long by 32 feet deep, it is a five bay Greek Revival
with an attached Kitchen/Servents quarters, measuring 18 feet square.

The interior of the house is in excelent condition. There are *welve rooms in the main
house; four on the first floor, four on the second floor, and four on the third/atic
floor, There is a wide centragl hall with open sitring of steps and landings. The string
board has applied brackets. There is a full basement with a seperaie cold storag

area and spring. The interior moulding is in excellent condition , as well as the
original hardware, The interior walls of the house ars of wood lathe with hair

olaster ‘and the floers are of unpainted hemlcck,

2lumbing, elecirification, and heating (hot water/ oiland coal furnace) modifications
were done in a quality marner as not to destroy the original fabric of the house,

The major change to the servents quarters, circa 1550, involved the closing of the
fireplace and dividing the room in half to build a modern bathroom/shower. flso at

the same time an addition was added, of red brick, to the rear of the servrnts
quarters for an office/den. The other two noticesble exterior changes to ihe house are:
(1) a change from 6/6 windows to 1/1. This was a common practice in the southemn

part of Huntingdon County, starting about 1920, when the county experienced 2 building
boom and (2) the enclesing of the front of the kitchen/servents guarters exterior
entrance (circa 1920}.

The only associated out budllding is a two car garage (circa 1950).

The Leas House has a very sirong resemolance to'the Grubh Mansion in Lancaster, Pennsyl-
vania. The Grubb townhouse was built in 18L5/16L6. The Leas House, built in 1850, has
low third storey windows and wooden lintels at the window openings,.. The cornice decorated
by dentils. The enirance portico has singular fluted doric order columns. The main en-
trance is through a single panel itwo inch door, flanked by plain glass side~lignis.

The Leas House is built orn a tract of land where Fort Shirley originally stood. A 1916
description suggest that the Shirleysburg Femszle Seminary (the lLeas Eouse) is near the
approximate location of the 1755 fort site, In 1926 the Pennsylvanis Historical Commission
and the EZecisi] of Pehneytvpnia 'omen in New York erected a momument in frontof the .
house near U.S. Route 522,
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8. Sigmificance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

_ prehistoric - archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion

____1400-1499 x.__ archeofogy-historic — conservation — law —__ science

— 15001599 -__ agriculiure ~— = BeCcOnomics ’ . literature .. sculpture

_ 1600-1699 . architecture —__ education ZA__ military ____social/

X  1700-1798 ____ art ___ engineering — music hurnanitarian

X 1800-1899 ___ commerce — exploration/settlement __ philosophy — theater

— 1900~ — communications — industry — politics/government ____ transportation
____invention ____ other (specity)

1755/56 for site of fort Governor Morris for Fort
Specific dates 1650 for house Builder/Architect Senjemin B, Leas for house

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph})

The Renjsmin. Leas House is a well preserved and 1ittle altered example of a CGreek
Revival Architecture in the village of Shirleysburg and Shirley Township, Huntingdon
County. The house was btuilt by fenjamin: Leas, a early merchant and tanner, who was

an early railroad commissioner, circa 1846, The Leas Fouse is built on a emall knoll,
vhich was the site of a French and Indian War fort. Fort Shirley was constructed

girca 1755/56 under the direction of Govenor Morris and the leadership of George Crogan,

The Leas House is built on a tract of land where Fori Shirley orizinally stood. Fort
Shirley was one of many, in a line of stockades built in 1755, and streching out across
the State westward from the Susquehanna River. The fort was thesa small knoll, near the
banks of the Aughwick Creek. Fort Shirley was on a line due north from Fort Littleton,

a distance of about 20 miles south, The line northward from Fort Shirley, passes through
Jack's Narrows and turns slightly northwest to the borough of Funtingdon (site of

Fort Standing Stone).

In 1596, “the site was visited as part of a survey for the first edition of Frontiér
Forts of Pennsylvania, The fort site was located on an elevated plot of ground, near
the Shirleysburg Femele Semirary (1916), within the limits of the borough of Shirleys-
varg (Welser, 1916:567-568), An inspectiovn of the grounds showed no traces of the fort,
ixcept 2 slight depraseion in the groung | Tt was stated by locnl resifdents of the time
large stones were rwmoved from what was the corner of one of the walls, The State
Archaeologist has a collection (1981) of flints and lead balls(?) found on the site,
The gun flint appear to be of the period of the fort (Warfel,1981).

The original order given for the counstruction of the fort came L{rom Governor Forris.
The order was to build three fort stockades for defense., But this order was not adhered
to. The forts built were: Fort Patterson;Mexico, Fort Grandville; Lewiston, Fort
Littleton; Sugar Cabins (Fulton County), and Fort Shirley; Aughwick. The forts were
vigited by Morris in December, 1755 and january, 1756. By Jenuary 28, 1756, 211 the
forts were named %.He ordered that each fort be garrisoned with 75 men. On reoruary
9y 1750, Morris sent a letter to Genarsl Shirley, Mabout 20 miles rorthward of Fort
Littleton, at 2 plese called Aughwick, ancther fort is erected scmething larger
than Fort Lyttleton, which I have taken the 1iberity to honor with the name of Fort
Shirley., This stands near the great path used by Indians and Indian Traders, ...
(Veiser, 1916:569),
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Sherman Day, in his Historical Collections, stated that the earliest attempt at
establishing a settlement by white settlers, within Huntingdon County (originally

a part of Cumberland County) was probably in the year 1749, on the Aughwick Creek
(Veiser, 1916:571). This was mentioned because an early warent map showing Fort Shirley
on the lands of George Crogan, an’ Indian trader, It was Crogan who was crdered to super-
intend the building of Fort Shirley, after he received his Captain's Commission 18
December 1755. Prior to Crogan's commission he had built a small stockade at Aughwick
{Weiser, 1916:571). After the commission, Crogan probably reinforced his Stockade

and made it larger, The description. was as Fifty foot square, with blockhouses on two
corners and barracks within, capable of housing fifty men.(‘klser,1916:571).

Between 1750 and 1756, both Aughwick and Fort Shirley appeer frequently in the Provin-
cial Records. Because of the poor conditions between the British and the Indians,
Govenor Demny ordered the evacuation of Fort Shirley 15 October 1756, However, the fort
was not totally abandoned or forgotten. In 1775, Rev. Philip Fithian recorded this in
his journal; 22 August 1775: " We crossed Ofwick (sic) Creek, and arrived about eight
in the evening at Mr. fouwley'!s, who lives within the walls of old Fort Shirley
(Africa}1883:45-46) "

In 18L3, Benjamin B. Leas bought the fort tract. By 1850, he had finished building
his house (Welch, 1909:63).The house is a well preserved and little altered example
of a Greek Revival urban townhouse found in rural Huntingdcn County. The house is
=t o yornacular Ovesle Bevivsl sammanly found dn the cnuntryr, bt » 2laegical
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textbook example of an urban example transplanted into ruralJPennsylvania. The best
example that has similiar facade features is the Grubb Mansion, in Lancaster, fennsyl-
vania, The facade's desigin may have been adapted from a plate in John Hall's A Series
of Select and Original Designs for Dwelling Houses (Baltimore, 18L0) (Snyder,19051).

Little is known of Zenjamin B. Leas. He came from a prominantGerman . family ihat
settled in the Shirleysburg ares (Germany Valley) in 1829, Ye and his brother, Hlliam
3, Leas were both involved in the tanning and merchantile business. Both had interest

in the then developing railroad systems in Pennsylvania, Benjamin B, Leas was appointed
as a commissoner to The Pennsylvania Railroad in April 18L6, In 18L8, He and others
incorporatedinto the Drakels Ferry and East Broad Top Railroad Company to estaolish

a roadibed from Drake'!s Ferry (Mount Union) te the Coal fields in the Broad Top Regicn.
Because of their inability to raise sufficent funds the rzilrcad was never build,
Benjamin B. Leas died about 185k, and never saw his dream come true., However his Drother
William . Leas and others started the corporation under a new charter in 1856. The
Corporation was called the Zast Zroad Top Railrocad and Coal Company. 37 1872, the road
was cpen for business from Orbisonia to Feuetb.lnion,
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Two years after Leas built the houss he sold it to the Shirleysburg Female Seminary.
The seminary was incorporated in Shirleysburg as one of the first schools in the
county to teach only women.

The commonwealth approved the Act of 183L, that provided local school districts, if
they desired, to establish a board of directors, build school houses (at the state's
expense), have an annual eximination of teachers, school boards could supervise
teachers, and levie taxes, But this was not the case in Huntingdon County, espe-
cially in Shirleys burg. There was a strong anti-free schocl movenent in the

County. There were a number of well=to-do citizsns who objected to paying taxes

for "free" schocls {Roddy,1571:3).

Trom 1852 to about 1868, Shirleysburg had three Academies for education., "At one
time a spirit of hogtility to public schools was rife in Shirley township, it

being the last district to accept the common school system (Lytle, 1976:178)n

About 1866,the directors of the Shirleysburg Seminary closed the doors and sold the
btuilding to a David Douglas. In 1893, after serving as an "0ld Folks Home! from
1865, after the death of Douglas, the Leas House became an academy for about

10 years (Schreiber, 1976:65-67).

During the time between 1685 to 1893, the Leas House was a resthome for members of
the German Baptist Church, The Cerman Baptist Church of ¥Middle Pennsylvania
incorporated as the "01d Folks Home of the German Baptlst Church," also known as
the RockView Home.(Huntingdon County Deed Book, Vol. 5-3: 5L, D-L:530, and Misc.
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It should be noted that two miles from Shirleysburg is Germany Valley, named after
settlers originating from the Lancaster County area. They erected a Stone Church

in 1836, In 1850, a Church meeting, with represenatives from the United States, uas
heldiz: in the Valley.

Since 1910, the house has been used as a residance by a number of individuals, of
note a natlve American;Milo D. Newsome,aks - Lone Star (1950), commerical artist
Willargd Myers (197C), and to date (1983) the building now serves as offices
for the Aughwick Machine Company: aka Moore Metals,
LYoy 4 v
Al though the Leas House has had diverse uge, it has never baen‘altered or changed
from its Orlglnal appearence, The Oﬂlj poss:.ble threat toc the house or grounds may cone fror

work on U.S, 522.
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10. Geographicai Iséta

Acreage of nominated property 0,78 acues

Quadrangle name _iy ot Pgnna,
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Verbal boundary description and justification
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comtiniance zheelt mumuer 3
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List all siat.es and countles for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state /A code E/A

county /A code /A

A /A

state code !

7'!'/ A SR
county code /"

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle Jocros Gohn Trobock

organization“cr tho 5.2.7. Iend lommany

street & number 213 3catl e

city ortown  Fcunti union,

state  D-n-a . 170RA

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

—_national _____state

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer fo
665), | hereby nominate this property tor ingtusion in the National f
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Nationa

State Mistoric Preservation Officer signature

r the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—

aister and certify that it has been evaluated

timelLarry E.Tise, State Historic Preservation éfficer date R |2_2_( 53

" For NPS use only

| hereby certity that this property is included in the Nationai Register

date

Keeper of the National Register

Attest:

date

Chief of Registration
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Beginning at a point on U. §. 522 Worth to Mount Union, in the community of Shirleys-
burg, Funtingdon County, west 303 feet to a point, thence; socuth 330 feet to a

point, Thence; east 363 feet to a point on U.S,v522, thencejnorth along U.S.522,

330 fest to the place of bYeginning, Being the same ground btounded on the north

and west by lands ncw or formerly of T.M. Braton, on the south by lands of now or
formerly of B.F. Cornelius, and on the east by Main Street (highway route number
522), containing + 2,75 acres.

The 2.75 acres inclides the original 1ot bought by 3enjamin 3. Leas in 1843, and
sold to the Shirleysburg Female Seminary 6 January 1852 (Huntingdon County
Recorders Office: H-2:509) and the land later bought by David Doughas from Trustees
of the Female Seminary 7 April 1866 (Huntingdon County Recorders Office: V-2:57)
containing six lots, This is also the same parcel of ground described by Welser in
his chapter of"Frontier Forts in the Cumberland and Juniata Valley," in the first
volume of Frontier Forts of Pennsylvania (1916 ed.). Weiser states:

" The writer, after an inspection of the site found it (site of Fort Shirley)
on an elevated plot of ground, where now stands the Shirleysburg Female
Seminary, with in the limits of the borough of Shirleysburg and on the
east zide of it {3hirleysburg) about one fourth mile from the Aughwick
Creek ( Weiser, 1916:567-568),1



Shirley |
= Home fpr th

17307

PENNSYLVANIA TURNPIKE 22 Mi.

ORBISONIA 3.5 Mi. ~




